

House Calendar

Friday, March 22, 2013

73rd DAY OF THE BIENNIAL SESSION

House Convenes at 9:30 A.M.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

ACTION CALENDAR

Action Postponed Until March 22, 2013

Third Reading

H. 520 Reducing energy costs and greenhouse gas emissions.....	696
Rep. Cheney amendment.....	696
Rep. Higley amendment	699
Rep. Donahue amendment.....	699

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 65 Limited immunity from liability for reporting a drug or alcohol overdose	700
Rep. Donahue amendment.....	700
H. 95 Unclaimed life insurance benefits	700
H. 280 Payment of wages.....	700
H. 513 The Department of Financial Regulation	700
H. 522 Strengthening Vermont's response to opioid addiction and methamphetamine abuse	700
Rep. Lippert amendment	700
Rep. Higley amendment	701

NOTICE CALENDAR

Favorable with Amendment

H. 395 The establishment of the Vermont Clean Energy Loan Fund.....	702
Rep. Carr for Commerce and Economic Development	
Rep. Wilson for Ways and Means.....	708

Senate Proposal of Amendment

J.R.H. 1 Relating to the history and legacy of the Vermont State Hospital and the preservation of its cemetery..... 708

Consent Calendar

H.C.R. 61 Honoring the outstanding efforts of those who care for, educate, and advocate for our young children in Vermont 710

H.C.R. 62 Designating March 11–17 as Multiple Sclerosis Week in Vermont 710

H.C.R. 63 Commemorating Vermont Railway’s gift of a 1913 rail car to the City of Rutland 710

H.C.R. 64 Congratulating the winners of the sixth Annual Junior Iron Chef VT statewide youth culinary competition..... 710

H.C.R. 65 In memory of Tom Fagan and his role in the establishment of the Rutland Halloween Parade 710

H.C.R. 66 Congratulating the American Veterinary Medical Association on its 150th anniversary 710

H.C.R. 67 Honoring the federal TRIO programs in Vermont 710

H.C.R. 68 Recognizing the creative recreational proposal of Playgrounds for P.E.A.S.E. 711

H.C.R. 69 Honoring the Playhouse Cooperative’s creative effort to save and operate Randolph’s Playhouse Movie Theatre 711

H.C.R. 70 Honoring Cheryl White and the Valley Voice newspaper for outstanding community service 711

H.C.R. 71 In memory of former Representative Daniel H. Deuel of West Rutland 711

H.C.R. 72 Congratulating the 2013 Harwood Union High School Highlanders Division II girls’ ice hockey championship team..... 711

S.C.R. 17 Senate concurrent resolution congratulating the Beth Jacob Synagogue in Montpelier on its centennial anniversary..... 711

S.C.R. 18 Senate concurrent resolution in memory of former Shrewsbury Selectboard Chair Donald Parrish 711

ORDERS OF THE DAY

ACTION CALENDAR

Action Postponed Until March 22, 2013

Third Reading

H. 520

An act relating to reducing energy costs and greenhouse gas emissions

Amendment to be offered by Rep. Cheney of Norwich to H. 520

Rep. Cheney of Norwich moves that the bill be amended as follows:

First: After Sec. 29, by adding three new sections to be numbered 29a, 29b, and 29c to read:

* * * Electric Vehicles * * *

Sec. 29a. ELECTRIC VEHICLES AND CHARGING STATIONS, STATE FLEET

(a)(1) On or before December 15, 2013, the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services (the Commissioner), after consultation with the Commissioners of Public Service and of Human Resources and any other person the Commissioner considers appropriate, shall complete a study and submit a written report to the House and Senate Committees on Natural Resources and Energy, the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions, and the Senate Committee on Institutions on the feasibility, benefits, and costs of installing electric vehicle charging stations in the vicinity of state facilities for use by state employees and by members of the public.

(2) The study and report required by this subsection shall include:

(A) recommendations for the installation of electric charging stations at state office buildings;

(B) proposed policies related to the use of charging stations by state employees and the visiting public and a proposed fee structure;

(C) identification of those recommendations requiring legislative action and proposed legislation to enact those recommendations; and

(D) any other findings or recommendations the Commissioner considers relevant.

(b)(1) On or before January 15, 2014, the Commissioner of Buildings and General Services, after consultation with the Secretary of Administration, the

Commissioner of Public Service, and any other person the Commissioner considers appropriate, shall submit to the House and Senate Committees on Natural Resources and Energy, the House Committee on Corrections and Institutions, and the Senate Committee on Institutions a written plan for incorporating electric vehicles into the state fleet.

(2) The plan under this subsection shall include:

(A) a strategy and a target date for incorporating electric vehicles into the state fleet, including identifying which types of vehicles would or would not be suitable for conversion to plug-in electric drive vehicles; and

(B) a review of the current methods used for life-cycle cost analysis of the state fleet, including how to account for the costs of carbon dioxide emissions when considering environmental externalities.

(3) The plan under this subsection shall be deemed a part of the State Energy Plan under 3 V.S.A. § 2291 and, as part of the periodic readoption of the State Energy Plan, shall be integrated into that plan and updated.

(c) In this section, “electric vehicles” means plug-in hybrid vehicles and battery electric vehicles.

Sec. 29b. 3 V.S.A. § 2291 is amended to read:

§ 2291. STATE AGENCY ENERGY PLAN

* * *

(c) ~~The secretary of administration~~ Secretary of Administration with the cooperation of the ~~commissioners of public service and of buildings and general services~~ Commissioners of Public Service and of Buildings and General Services shall develop and oversee the implementation of a state agency energy plan for state government. The plan shall be adopted by June 30, 2005, modified as necessary, and readopted by the ~~secretary~~ Secretary on or before January 15, 2010 and each sixth year subsequent to 2010. The plan shall accomplish the following objectives and requirements:

(1) To conserve resources, save energy, and reduce pollution. The plan shall devise strategies to identify to the greatest extent feasible, all opportunities for conservation of resources through environmentally and economically sound infrastructure development, purchasing, and fleet management, and investments in renewable energy and energy efficiency available to the ~~state~~ State which are cost effective on a life cycle cost basis.

(2) To consider state policies and operations that affect energy use.

(3) To devise a strategy to implement or acquire all prudent opportunities and investments in as prompt and efficient a manner as possible.

(4) To include appropriate provisions for monitoring resource and energy use and evaluating the impact of measures undertaken.

(5) To identify education, management, and other relevant policy changes that are a part of the implementation strategy.

(6) To devise a strategy to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The plan shall include steps to encourage more efficient trip planning, to reduce the average fuel consumption of the state fleet, ~~and~~ to encourage alternatives to solo-commuting state employees for commuting and job-related travel, and to incorporate plug-in hybrid and battery electric vehicles into the state fleet if cost-effective on a life-cycle basis.

(7) To provide, where feasible, for the installation of renewable energy systems including solar energy systems, which shall include equipment or building design features, or both, designed to attain the optimal mix of minimizing solar gain in the summer and maximizing solar gain during the winter, as part of the new construction or major renovation of any state building. The cost of implementation and installation will be identified as part of the budget process presented to the ~~general assembly~~ General Assembly.

* * *

Sec. 29c. PROMOTING THE USE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES

(a) The Secretary of Natural Resources (“Secretary”), in consultation with the Secretary of Transportation, the Commissioner of Public Service, the Commissioner of Taxes, and any other person the Secretary considers appropriate, shall study how to promote an expansion in the use of electric vehicles in Vermont consistent with achieving the State’s greenhouse gas reduction goals set forth in 10 V.S.A. § 578. The study shall include consideration of:

(1) the costs and benefits to the State of its offering incentives for the purchase or sale of electric vehicles by consumers and businesses;

(2) the optimal siting of charging stations throughout the State and whether the State should subsidize or take other steps to facilitate the installation of charging stations;

(3) whether and how to couple electric vehicle charging stations with renewable electric generation resources;

(4) options to fund any cost to the State arising from recommendations under subdivisions (1)–(3) of this subsection;

(5) such other subjects the Secretary considers relevant.

(b) On or before December 15, 2013, the Secretary shall issue a written

report of the findings of the study required under subsection (a) of this section and the Secretary's recommendations and the reasons for those recommendations to the House and Senate Committees on Natural Resources and Energy and the House and Senate Committees on Transportation. The report shall include the Secretary's recommendations on how to promote an expansion in the use of electric vehicles. The report also shall identify those recommendations requiring legislative action and include the Secretary's proposed legislation to enact those recommendations.

(c) In this section, "electric vehicles" means plug-in hybrid vehicles and battery electric vehicles.

Second: In Sec. 30 (effective dates), by striking subsection (a) and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to read:

(a) The following shall take effect on passage: this section and Secs. 1 (findings); 2 (jurisdiction; general scope); 3 (appointed entities; initial plan; statutory revision); 12 (disclosure tool working group; reports); 18 (eligible beneficiaries; requirements); 19 (benefit amounts); 23 (vehicle sales requirements); 24 (study; renewables; heating and cooling); 27 (total energy; report); 28 (climate change education; report); 29 (thermal efficiency funding and savings; report); 29a (electric vehicles and charging stations; state fleet) and 29c (promoting the use of electric vehicles) of this act.

Amendment to be offered by Rep. Higley of Lowell to H. 520

First: In Sec. 27, subsection (b), by renumbering subdivision (2) to be subdivision "(3)", and by inserting a new subdivision (2) to read:

(2) The group's study and report shall consider the economic impacts on the state economy and on the competitiveness of Vermont businesses of a total energy standard and of implementing the policies and funding mechanisms described in this subsection.

Second: In Sec. 28, introductory paragraph, before the words "the ability", by striking the word "and" and before the period, by inserting ", and the economic impacts, including the impacts on the competitiveness of Vermont businesses, of measures taken to address climate change"

Amendment to be offered by Rep. Donahue of Northfield to H. 520

First: In Sec. 6, 21 V.S.A. § 266, in subsection (e), subdivision (2)(B), before the period, by inserting and the residential construction is not an owner-occupied single-family dwelling

Second: In Sec. 9, 24 V.S.A. § 4449, in subsection (a), by striking subdivision (2) and inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (2) to read:

(2) If the bylaws so adopted so provide, it shall be unlawful to use or occupy or permit the use or occupancy of any land or structure, or part thereof, created, erected, changed, converted, or wholly or partly altered or enlarged in its use or structure after the effective date of this chapter, within the area affected by those bylaws, until a certificate of occupancy is issued therefor by the administrative officer, stating that the proposed use of the structure or land conforms to the requirements of those bylaws. Except for a structure that is an owner-occupied single-family dwelling, provision of a certificate as required by 21 V.S.A. § 266 (residential building energy standards) or 268 (commercial building energy standards) shall be a condition precedent to the issuance of any such certificate of occupancy.

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 65

An act relating to limited immunity from liability for reporting a drug or alcohol overdose

Amendment to be offered by Rep. Donahue of Northfield to H. 65

Rep. Donahue of Northfield moves that the bill be amended as follows:

In Sec. 2, 18 V.S.A. § 4254(b) and (c) by striking “or for providing to or enabling consumption of alcohol by someone under age 21 pursuant to 7 V.S.A. § 658(a)–(c)”

H. 95

An act relating to unclaimed life insurance benefits

H. 280

An act relating to payment of wages

H. 513

An act relating to the Department of Financial Regulation

H. 522

An act relating to strengthening Vermont’s response to opioid addiction and methamphetamine abuse

Amendment to be offered by Rep. Lippert of Hinesburg to H. 522

First: By striking out Sec. 22 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 22 to read as follows:

Sec. 22. 18 V.S.A. § 4252 is amended to read:

§ 4252. PENALTIES FOR DISPENSING ~~OR~~, SELLING, OR
MANUFACTURING REGULATED DRUGS IN A DWELLING

(a) No person shall knowingly permit a dwelling, building, or structure owned by or under the control of the person to be used for the purpose of illegally dispensing ~~or~~, selling, or manufacturing a regulated drug.

(b) A landlord shall be in violation of subsection (a) of this section ~~only~~ if the landlord ~~knew at the time he or she signed the lease agreement~~ has actual knowledge that the tenant ~~intended~~ is using or intends to use the dwelling, building, or structure for the purpose of illegally dispensing ~~or~~, selling, or manufacturing a regulated drug.

(c) It shall not be a violation of this section if the landlord notifies a law enforcement officer within 24 hours of becoming aware that the tenant is using or intends to use the dwelling for the purpose of illegally dispensing, selling, or manufacturing a regulated drug.

(d) A person who violates this section shall be imprisoned not more than two years or fined not more than \$1,000.00, or both.

Second: In Sec. 22c, in 9 V.S.A. § 3881, in subdivision (3)(G), by striking out “or (c)” and by deleting subdivision (5) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (5) to read:

(5)(A) “Precious metal dealer” means a person who:

(i) has a physical presence in this state, whether temporary or permanent;

(ii) is engaged in the business of purchasing or selling precious metal; and

(iii) purchases or sells \$500.00 or more of precious metal in a consecutive 12-month period.

(B) “Precious metal dealer” does not include a charitable organization that is qualified as tax exempt under 26 U.S.C. § 501.

Amendment to be offered by Rep. Higley of Lowell to H. 522

Rep. Higley of Lowell moves that the bill be amended in Sec. 22c as follows:

First: In 9 V.S.A. § 3881, by striking subdivision (3) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (3) to read:

(3) “Disqualifying offense” means:

(A) a felony under:

- (i) 13 V.S.A. chapter 47 (fraud);
 - (ii) 13 V.S.A. chapter 49 (fraud in commercial transaction);
 - (iii) 13 V.S.A. chapter 57 (larceny and embezzlement);
 - (iv) 13 V.S.A. chapter 84 (possession and control of regulated drugs);
- (B) a violent felony under 18 V.S.A. § 4474g(e);
- (C) one of the following misdemeanors:
- (i) petit larceny in violation of 13 V.S.A. § 2502;
 - (ii) receipt of stolen property in violation of 13 V.S.A. § 2561;
 - (iii) false pretenses or tokens in violation of 13 V.S.A. § 2002;
 - (iv) false tokens in violation of 13 V.S.A. § 2003;
- (D) a violation of this chapter punishable under subsection 3890(b) of this title.

Second: In 9 V.S.A. § 3882(d) by striking subdivision (1) in its entirety and by inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (1) to read:

(d)(1) The Department of Public Safety shall not issue or renew a license if an applicant or one of its principals has been convicted, on or after October 1, 2013, of a disqualifying offense, provided that a conviction for a misdemeanor under subdivision 3881(3)(C) of this title occurred no earlier than 10 years prior to the date of application.

NOTICE CALENDAR

Favorable with Amendment

H. 395

An act relating to the establishment of the Vermont Clean Energy Loan Fund

Rep. Carr of Brandon, for the Committee on **Commerce and Economic Development**, recommends the bill be amended by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 10 V.S.A. chapter 12, subchapter 13 is added to read:

Subchapter 13. Vermont Sustainable Energy Loan Fund

§ 280cc. CREATION; PURPOSE; DEFINITIONS

(a) There is established within the Authority the Vermont Sustainable Energy Loan Fund, referred to in this subchapter as “the Fund,” the purpose of

which shall be to enable the Authority to make loans and provide other forms of financing for projects that stimulate and encourage development and deployment of sustainable energy projects in the State of Vermont.

(b) In this subchapter:

(1) “Renewable energy” shall have the same meaning as in 30 V.S.A. § 8002(17).

(2) “Sustainable energy” means energy efficiency, renewable energy, and technologies that enhance or support the development and implementation of renewable energy or energy efficiency, or both.

§ 280dd. LOAN PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED WITHIN THE FUND

(a) The Fund shall consist of:

(1) Existing sustainable energy loans made by the Authority, the Vermont Small Business Development Corporation, and the Vermont Agricultural Credit Corporation

(2) Sustainable energy loans originated under the following programs:

(A) The Small Business Energy Efficiency Loan Program, under which the Authority provides loans for qualifying commercial energy efficiency improvements.

(B) The Renewable Energy Loan Program, which the Authority may create to provide loans for qualifying renewable energy projects.

(C) The Agricultural Energy Loan Program, which the Authority may create to provide loans for qualifying agriculture- and forest product-based sustainable energy projects.

(D) The Energy Efficiency Loan Guarantee Program, which the Authority may create to provide loan guarantees to participating lending institutions that enroll loans for sustainable energy projects in the Program.

(3) Programs created by the Authority pursuant to subsection (c) of this section.

(b) The Fund shall be administered by the Authority and shall not be subject to 32 V.S.A. chapter 7, subchapter 5.

(c) The Authority may establish:

(1) New financing programs that the Authority determines are necessary to encourage and promote sustainable energy projects and reduce reliance upon traditional fossil fuel sources.

(2) Policies and procedures for programs within the Fund that the

Authority determines are necessary to carry out the purposes of this subchapter.

Sec. 2. INITIAL CAPITALIZATION OF THE ENERGY EFFICIENCY
LOAN GUARANTEE PROGRAM

The Vermont Economic Development Authority shall provide loan guarantees under the Energy Efficiency Loan Guarantee Program for loans enrolled in the Program by participating banks through an initial capital contribution of \$500,000.00 from the Authority and from additional sources as they become available, which may include capital investments from the Vermont Clean Energy Development Fund, State Energy Program grants through the Department of Public Service, and available federal funding.

Sec. 3. 10 V.S.A. § 216 is amended to read:

§ 216. AUTHORITY; GENERAL POWERS

The ~~authority~~ Authority is hereby authorized:

* * *

(13) To cause to be incorporated in Vermont a nonprofit corporation which will qualify as a state development company under Title 15 of the United States Code and rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. The voting members of the ~~authority~~ Authority shall be members of the company and shall constitute the board of directors of the company. The company shall have at least 14 other members selected by the members of the ~~authority~~ Authority. The company shall be organized and operate under the nonprofit corporation laws of the ~~state~~ State of Vermont to the extent not inconsistent herewith. The ~~authority~~ Authority shall have the power to contract with the company to provide staff and management needs of the company. The ~~authority~~ Authority is authorized to contribute ~~up to \$25,000.00~~ to the capital of the company in an amount the Authority determines is necessary and appropriate;

(14) To incorporate one or more nonprofit corporations in Vermont to fulfill the goals of this chapter. Such corporation shall be empowered to borrow money and to receive and accept gifts, grants, or contributions from any source, provided that such gifts, grants, or contributions are not less than \$5,000.00 from any one source for the period of one year and provided that such nonprofit corporation provides business loans of not less than \$2,500.00 to any particular entity or individual. The voting members of the ~~authority~~ Authority shall be directors of the corporation. The corporation shall be organized and operate under the nonprofit corporation laws of the ~~state~~ State of Vermont. The ~~authority~~ Authority may contract with the corporation to

provide staff and management needs of the company. The ~~authority~~ Authority may contribute ~~no more than \$1,050,000.00~~ to the capital of the corporation in an amount the Authority determines is necessary and appropriate;

* * *

(17) To contribute to the capital of the Vermont Agricultural Credit Corporation established pursuant to chapter 16A of this title in an amount the Authority determines is necessary and appropriate;

(18) To contribute to the capital of the Vermont Sustainable Energy Loan Fund established under subchapter 13 of this chapter in an amount the Authority determines is necessary and appropriate.

Sec. 4. 10 V.S.A. § 234 is amended to read:

§ 234. THE VERMONT JOBS FUND

* * *

(b) In order to provide monies in the ~~industrial development fund~~ Fund for loans under this chapter, the ~~authority~~ Authority may issue notes for purchase by the ~~state treasurer~~ State Treasurer as provided in section 235 of this chapter.

* * *

(f) The Authority may loan money from the Fund to the Vermont Sustainable Energy Loan Fund established under subchapter 13 of this chapter at interest rates and on terms and conditions set by the Authority.

Sec. 5. 10 V.S.A. § 280a is amended to read:

§ 280a. ELIGIBLE PROJECTS; AUTHORIZED FINANCING PROGRAMS

(a) The ~~authority~~ Authority may develop, modify, and implement any existing or new financing program, provided that any specific project that benefits from such program shall meet the criteria contained in the Vermont sustainable jobs strategy adopted under section 280b of this title, and provided further that the program shall meet the criteria contained in the Vermont sustainable jobs strategy adopted under section 280b of this title. ~~Such~~ These programs may include:

(1) the ~~mortgage insurance program~~ Mortgage Insurance Program, administered under subchapter 2 of chapter 12 of this title;

(2) the ~~loans to local development corporations program~~ Loans to Local Development Corporations Program, administered under subchapter 3 of chapter 12 of this title;

(3) the ~~industrial revenue bond program~~ Industrial Revenue Bond

Program, administered under subchapter 4 of chapter 12 of this title;

(4) the ~~direct loan program~~ Direct Loan Program, administered under subchapter 5 of chapter 12 of this title;

(5) the ~~Vermont financial access program, administered under subchapter 8 of chapter 12 of this title;~~

(6) the SBA 504 Certified Development Company and ~~Rural Economic Activity Loan programs~~ Small Business Loan Programs of the authority's Vermont ~~503~~ 504 Corporation, administered by the ~~authority~~ Authority under subdivision 216(13) of this title;

(7)(6) the Small Business Development Corporation ~~program~~ Program, administered by the ~~authority~~ Authority under subdivision 216(14) of this title;

(8)(7) one or more programs targeting economically distressed regions of the ~~state~~ State, and specifically including the ~~authority~~ Authority to develop a program to finance or refinance up to 100 percent of the existing assets or debts of a health, recreation, and fitness organization which is exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, the income of which is entirely used for its exempt purpose, that owns and operates a recreation facility located in a distressed region of the ~~state~~ State;

(9)(8) an ~~export finance program~~ Export Finance Program, administered by the ~~authority~~ Authority under subchapter 9 of chapter 12 of this title;

(9) a Vermont Sustainable Energy Loan Fund and any programs created thereunder, administered by the Authority under subchapter 13 of this chapter;

* * *

Sec. 6. 10 V.S.A. § 213(b) and (c) are amended to read:

(b) The ~~authority~~ Authority shall have ~~12~~ 15 voting members consisting of the ~~secretary of the agency of commerce and community development, the state treasurer, the secretary of agriculture, food and markets~~ Secretary of the Agency of Commerce and Community Development, the State Treasurer, the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets, the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation, and the Commissioner of Public Service, each of whom shall serve as a voting ex officio member, or a designee of any of the aforementioned; and nine 10 members, who shall be residents of the ~~state~~ State of Vermont, appointed by the ~~governor~~ Governor with the advice and consent of the ~~senate~~ Senate. The appointed members shall be appointed for terms of six years and until their successors are appointed and qualified. ~~The first members appointed by the governor to the new authority shall be appointed, three for a term of two years, three for a term of four years and three for a term of six years.~~ Appointed members may be removed by the ~~governor~~ Governor

for cause and the ~~governor~~ Governor may fill any vacancy occurring among the appointed members for the balance of the unexpired term.

(c) The ~~authority~~ Authority shall elect a chair, from among its appointed members, and a vice chair and treasurer from among its members and shall employ a manager who shall hold office at the ~~authority's~~ Authority's pleasure and who, unless he or she is a member of the classified service under 3 V.S.A. chapter 13 of Title 3, shall receive such compensation as may be fixed by the ~~authority~~ Authority with the approval of the ~~governor~~ Governor. A quorum shall consist of ~~six~~ eight members. Members disqualified from voting under section 214 of this title shall be considered present for purposes of determining a quorum. No action of the ~~authority~~ Authority shall be considered valid unless the action is supported by a majority vote of the members present and voting and then only if at least ~~four~~ five members vote in favor of the action.

* * *

Sec. 7. 10 V.S.A. § 219(d) is amended to read:

(d) In order to assure the maintenance of the debt service reserve requirement in each debt service reserve fund established by the ~~authority~~ Authority, there may be appropriated annually and paid to the ~~authority~~ Authority for deposit in each such fund, such sum as shall be certified by the chair of the ~~authority~~ Authority, to the ~~governor~~ Governor, the ~~president of the senate~~ President of the Senate, and the ~~speaker of the house~~ Speaker of the House, as is necessary to restore each such debt service reserve fund to an amount equal to the debt service reserve requirement for such fund. The chair shall annually, on or about February 1, make, execute, and deliver to the ~~governor~~ Governor, the ~~president of the senate~~ President of the Senate, and the ~~speaker of the house~~ Speaker of the House, a certificate stating the sum required to restore each such debt service reserve fund to the amount aforesaid, and the sum so certified may be appropriated, and if appropriated, shall be paid to the ~~authority~~ Authority during the then current state fiscal year. The principal amount of bonds or notes outstanding at any one time and secured in whole or in part by a debt service reserve fund to which state funds may be appropriated pursuant to this subsection shall not exceed ~~\$115,000,000.00~~ \$130,000,000.00, provided that the foregoing shall not impair the obligation of any contract or contracts entered into by the authority in contravention of the Constitution of the United States.

Sec. 8. INVESTMENT OF STATE MONIES

The Treasurer is hereby authorized to establish a short-term credit facility for the benefit of the Vermont Economic Development Authority in an amount of up to \$10,000,000.00.

Sec. 9. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

(Committee Vote: 11-0-0)

Rep. Wilson of Manchester, for the Committee on **Ways and Means**, recommends the bill ought to pass when amended as recommended by the Committee on **Commerce and Economic Development**.

(Committee Vote: 10-0-1)

Senate Proposal of Amendment

J.R.H. 1

Joint resolution relating to the history and legacy of the Vermont State Hospital and the preservation of its cemetery

The Senate proposes to the House to amend the resolution by striking out all after the title and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Whereas, in 1888, the trustees of the Vermont Asylum for the Insane in Brattleboro (renamed the Brattleboro Retreat in 1892 to avoid confusion with the Waterbury facility) reported that the facility was beyond its designed capacity, and Dr. Don D. Grout, the member from Stowe and a future superintendent of the Vermont State Asylum for the Insane (renamed the Vermont State Hospital for the Insane in 1898), introduced legislation that became Act 94, “An act providing for the care, custody and treatment of the insane poor and insane criminals of the state,” and

Whereas, the state purchased 500 acres of land in Waterbury for the new facility, and after initial construction, the first 25 patients arrived by train from Brattleboro on August 8, 1891, and

Whereas, during its 120 years of service, the Vermont State Hospital played a powerful role in the lives of many Vermonters, including many patients and staff, and

Whereas, from early on, the Vermont State Hospital confronted a continuing struggle to secure sufficient financing to provide the best quality of care, and in recent decades, it had been recognized that the facilities in Waterbury no longer allowed for state-of-the-art care, and the existing hospital needed to be closed, and

Whereas, in November 1927, and again at the end of August 2011, the staff and patients at the Vermont State Hospital undertook extraordinary measures to respond to devastating floods, and

Whereas, the severe damage that the Vermont State Hospital sustained in Tropical Storm Irene required an immediate relocation or replacement of services previously provided at the Vermont State Hospital, and

Whereas, as a new chapter in mental health care in Vermont begins, it should be one that integrates mental health care with other health care services, focuses on community supports and treatment close to home, avoids unnecessary hospitalization, and never abandons those with mental health needs, and

Whereas, with the closure of the historic Vermont State Hospital Waterbury campus, it is important to remember those individuals buried at the hospital's cemetery in use from the hospital's inception until 1912 and which includes a memorial stone with an inscription that reads:

This beautiful knoll overlooking the grounds of the Vermont State Hospital is matched in splendor only by the twenty or so residents of the Hospital who were buried here between 1891 and 1912. May their spirits soar, you are remembered, and

Whereas, the preservation of this cemetery and of the memory of those individuals is of lasting importance, and

Whereas, the names of those buried there have been gathered in the past, and may still be able to be located and preserved so that these individuals will not be left unknown, and

Whereas, there is evidence that at least two and perhaps more patients from the Vermont State Hospital were buried at different locations on the grounds in unmarked graves that are likely to never be identified which would be a grievous indication of past indifference to the lives of these individuals, a practice that should never again be permitted to occur in this state, now therefore be it

Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives:

That the General Assembly observes the powerful role that the Vermont State Hospital played in the history of mental health treatment in Vermont and requests the State to maintain and preserve perpetually the hospital's cemetery, and be it further

Resolved: That the Department of Mental Health is requested to seek to identify from past records those individuals who were buried at different locations, and be it further

Resolved: That the Secretary of State be directed to send a copy of this resolution to the Commissioner of Mental Health, to the Commissioner of

Buildings and General Services, and to the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation.

(For text see House Journal 1/23/2013)

Consent Calendar

Concurrent Resolutions for Adoption Under Joint Rule 16a

The following concurrent resolutions have been introduced for approval by the Senate and House and will be adopted automatically unless a Senator or Representative requests floor consideration before today's adjournment. Requests for floor consideration in either chamber should be communicated to the Secretary's office and/or the House Clerk's office, respectively. For text of resolutions, see Addendum to House Calendar and Senate Calendar of 3/21/2013.

H.C.R. 61

House concurrent resolution honoring the outstanding efforts of those who care for, educate, and advocate for our young children in Vermont

H.C.R. 62

House concurrent resolution designating March 11–17 as Multiple Sclerosis Week in Vermont

H.C.R. 63

House concurrent resolution commemorating Vermont Railway's gift of a 1913 rail car to the City of Rutland

H.C.R. 64

House concurrent resolution congratulating the winners of the sixth Annual Junior Iron Chef VT statewide youth culinary competition

H.C.R. 65

House concurrent resolution in memory of Tom Fagan and his role in the establishment of the Rutland Halloween Parade

H.C.R. 66

House concurrent resolution congratulating the American Veterinary Medical Association on its 150th anniversary

H.C.R. 67

House concurrent resolution honoring the federal TRIO programs in Vermont

H.C.R. 68

House concurrent resolution recognizing the creative recreational proposal of Playgrounds for P.E.A.S.E.

H.C.R. 69

House concurrent resolution honoring the Playhouse Cooperative's creative effort to save and operate Randolph's Playhouse Movie Theatre

H.C.R. 70

House concurrent resolution honoring Cheryl White and the *Valley Voice* newspaper for outstanding community service

H.C.R. 71

House concurrent resolution in memory of former Representative Daniel H. Deuel of West Rutland

H.C.R. 72

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2013 Harwood Union High School Highlanders Division II girls' ice hockey championship team

S.C.R. 17

Senate concurrent resolution congratulating the Beth Jacob Synagogue in Montpelier on its centennial anniversary

S.C.R. 18

Senate concurrent resolution in memory of former Shrewsbury Selectboard Chair Donald Parrish

Public Hearings

April 18, 2013 - Room 11 - 6:00-8:00 PM - H. 208 Earned Sick Days - House General, Housing and Military Affairs